
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETINGAGENDA 
March 5, 2018 

6:00 p.m. 
Commissioner’s Meeting Room – Ground Floor Ste. 16 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 
 

I. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  
NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – CARL PENNAMON, CHAIR     
DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY, VICE-CHAIR     
DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN     
DISTRICT 4 – CRAIG SALMON     
DISTRICT 5  - DOUG LUKE     
  
 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       
  
 III.    Invocation – District 5 
         
 IV.    Approval of Agenda 
                    
 V.      Consent Agenda –  
1.   Approval of Minutes: 

 Regular Meeting Minutes, February 5, 2018 
 
2.   Check Register – Check #’s- 052207 - 52440 

                       
VI.   Public Hearing  

Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues 
such as rezoning, ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be 
considered by the County Commissioners.  Following the public hearing, the Board of 
Commissioners will take action on each item presented below.  
 

 

VIII. Presentations/Delegations  
Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not 
more than ten (10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens,  county 
employees or other events by the Commissioners.   
 

 Jasper County’s New Agriculture and Natural Resource Extension Agent  
 

IX.   Regular Agenda 
Old Business:   

VII. County Commissioner Items 

1



1. Senior Center New Van Lettering and Logo 
2. Sheriff Department Vehicles Lease Financing 

 
New Business: 

1. Request by the American Legion, Post 110 for a Proclamation to Name Jasper County 
a “Purple Heart County”. 

2. New Alcohol Application for Bear Creek Marina Restaurant  
3. Hazard Mitigation Plan Grant Pre Application  
4. Health Department Mold Remediation Quotes  
5. Clean Up Jasper County – April 2018 
 

X. County Attorney Items                                 
 
 XI.   County Manager Update 

1. Roads and Bridges 
2. Legislative 
3. Planning 

 
XII.   Citizen Comments  

The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the 
Commission for not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney 
will keep time.  Please be courteous of the 3 minute time limit. 

 
XIII. Executive Session 
            

  Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as 
              provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real 
              estate as provided by O.C.G.A.§50-14-3(4); and, Discussion on employment, 
              compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided in O.C.G.A. 
              § 50-14-3(6)   
 
             
   
   XIV. Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

2



Consent Agenda – Item 1 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  March 5, 2018 
 
Subject:  Approval of Minutes 
 
Summary: 
Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 
 

 Regular Meeting Minutes, February 5, 2018  
 

Called Meeting Minutes, February 12, 2018 and Work Session Minutes of February 26, 2018 
will be presented at next Meeting. 

 
 

Background: 
 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve minutes for:  
 

 Regular Meeting Minutes, February 5, 2018  
  

3



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: February 5, 2018– Regular Meeting  
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

February 5, 2018 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

6:00 P.M. 

Comm. Pennamon called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Commissioners Present: Chairman, Carl Pennamon, Vice-Chair, Bruce Henry, Don Jernigan, 
Craig Salmon and Doug Luke arrived at 6:02 p.m.  

Staff Present: Mike Benton, County Manager, Finance Director, Rhonda Blissit, and County 
Attorney, David Ozburn. 

Pledge of Allegiance: 

Invocation: 

District 3, Don Jernigan 

Agenda Approval: 

Comm. Jernigan made motion approve the agenda as presented, Comm. Henry seconded; passed 
unanimously. 

Consent Agenda: 

Minutes:  

Comm. Henry made motion to approve the Minutes of January 4, 2018 Regular Meeting, 
Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously. 

Comm. Salmon made motion to approve the Minutes of January 4, 2018 Regular Meeting, Henry 
seconded; passed unanimously. 

Check Register: 

Comm. Salmon made motion to approve the check register which included check #’s 52036-
52206 for payment, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 

Public Hearing: 

None 

Commissioner’s Items: 

4



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: February 5, 2018– Regular Meeting  
 

Jernigan: - Been getting quite a few calls on Jackson Lake Road needs striping. Also has had 
requests for trash pickup on Jackson Lake Road. Would like County Manager to get with 
Departments Head as we go into budget season to find it in their hearts and minds to cut back on 
some of their wants in order to give our employees a pay raise that is tied to performance as well 
as cost of living. 

Henry: King Plow Road off 83, there is a clogged culvert that is causing damage to the road. 
April 14th Jasper County FFA is holding a tractor pull, in the past we have allowed Mayor 
Champion to use the rubber tire tractor, he would like the board to approve that. 

Comm. Henry made motion that we allow Mayor Champion to use the rubber tire tractor for the 
FFA Tractor Pull on April 14th  and they will pick up and return the tractor, Jernigan seconded; 
passed unanimously. 

Pennamon: Asked County Manager to extend a thanks to Captain Walker and the Community 
Service Workers that picked up trash along our county roads. 

Salmon: Jackson Lake Road stripping as well.  Would like to look at a preventative maintenance 
plan.  Want to keep Palalto and Herd Creek Road in forefront where we have subdivision that 
you have to travel a dirt road to get to the subdivision. Palalto has a low point on one end. Also 
sent an email, he got a request on Turbo and Fields Roads getting in pretty bad shape again.  

Luke: He finally remembered to bring evaluation forms for possible use that they use at his place 
of business. 

Presentations/Delegations: 

2017 CAFR Presentation – Mark Hardison, Clifton, Lipford, Hardison, & Parker: 

Mr. Hardison presented the FY2017 Audit, noting the county has received a clean opinion. He 
also noted that the County has won the GFOA Certificate of Excellence for the 7th year.  

Mr. Hardison reviewed the audit noting that as of June 30th 2017 the county had $5million 
dollars in the bank, $5.8 million assets, Liabilities were $1million sixty six thousand.  

Mr. Hardison discussed Fund Balance, SPLOST, Landfill, and Curbside. 

Comm. Salmon made motion to accept the FY2017 Audit as presented, Jernigan seconded; 
passed unanimously. 

Four County Development Authority – Economic Update – Shane Short, Walton County: 

Mr. Shane Short thanked the board for having him at their meeting and provided an Economic 
Update on Four County Development Authority. 

5



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: February 5, 2018– Regular Meeting  
 

Mr. Short gave update on the purchase and sale agreement on the Morning Hornet LLC, fortune 
200 company.  They will have 5 phase development in Stanton Springs, they approved a bond 
resolution for $48 billion dollars.  The company is solely responsible for the bond. This is the 
largest ever in the state of Georgia.  The PILT (payment in lieu of taxes) is quite significant.  

Comm. Luke questioned the tentative ground breaking time. 

Mr. Short noted they expect the announcement sometime later this month. 

Comm. Henry questioned how many acres they are purchasing. 

Mr. Short noted a total of 416 acres and about 250 acres is owned by Joint Development 
Authority. The JDA will preliminarily collect about$15 million dollars on the sale of the 
property.  This sale of the property immediately eliminates the debt service on the property, once 
the deal is closed. 

Mr. Short noted after this deal there is still about 600 acres of developable property. 

Mr. Luke questioned the projection of jobs it will create. 

Mr. Short noted approximately 50 full-time employees per building with starting salaries of 
about $60k. 

Mr. Pennamon noted the debt service being eliminated will be a savings of about $70k for Jasper 
County. 

Mr. Short added that the county will also begin receiving funds from the PILT. 

Regular Agenda: 

Appointments: 

Appointment of Chairman: 

Comm.  Salmon nominated Carl Pennamon for Chairman, Jernigan seconded; passed 
unanimously. 

Appointment of Vice-Chairman: 

Comm. Jernigan nominated Craig Salmon for Vice-Chairman, Luke seconded for discussion; 
passed unanimously. 

Mr. Luke questioned if Mr. Salmon would be available. 

Mr. Salmon noted he would. 

Appointment of County Attorney: 

6



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: February 5, 2018– Regular Meeting  
 

Comm. Salmon nominated David Ozburn for County Attorney and any associates that he will 
need to rely on, Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously. 

Appointment of County Clerk: 

Comm. Jernigan nominated Sharon Robinson as County Clerk, Pennamon seconded; passed 
unanimously. 

Old Business: 

Senior Center Budget Amendment – Funding from Northeast Georgia Area Agency on 
Aging: 

 Ms. Norton noted she is asking the BOC to approve the one time Budget Increase for FY18 for 
$4,800 from the NEGA Area Agency on Aging. These funds must be fronted by the county and 
then will be reimbursed by the NEGA Area Agency on Aging, as approved by Director Peggy 
Jenkins. 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to amend the Senior Center budget by $4,800; Henry seconded; 
passed unanimously. 

911 Authority – Communications System Update and Request for Funding: 

Ms. Betty Jump noted the update of phase 1 completed on the radios on December 18th. The 911 
Board is requesting ½ of the Transcomm cost be funded from the Jasper County BOC 
Contingency.  This will leave the other half of the bill outstanding. 

Mr. Benton noted that the work has been completed and reviewed potential funding sources. (See 
agenda packet). If there is still work to be done he is fine with paying half of the bill at this time. 

Comm. Henry made motion to approve recommended funding source as outlined in the agenda 
packet totaling $35,228.99, Salmon seconded; passed unanimously. 

Comm. Henry questioned if the department heads are aware that these funds will be used. 

Mr. Benton noted yes. 

Comm. Luke made motion to pay ½ of the $35,228.99 and then get a report back and pay the 
remaining balance, Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously. 

New Business: 

Judicial Alternatives of Georgia Probation Services Agreement for Magistrate Court: 

Mr. Pennamon noted these are annual agreements that are to be renewed annually.  

Atty. Ozburn noted he has reviewed the document 

7



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: February 5, 2018– Regular Meeting  
 

Comm. Salmon made motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Probation Services 
Agreement between the Jasper County Magistrate Court and Judicial Alternatives of Georgia, 
Inc., Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 

Judicial Alternatives of Georgia Probation Services Agreement for Superior Court: 

Comm. Salmon made motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Probation Services 
Agreement between the Jasper County Superior Court and Judicial Alternatives of Georgia, Inc., 
Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously. 

Jasper County Health Department Building Repairs Update and Request for Funding: 

Ms. Christa McMillian, Nurse Manager, Jasper County Health Department and Mr. Morris 
Hutchinson, Director of Developmental Special Projects for the North Central Health District 
both addressed the Board of the needs of the Jasper County Health Department, and to request an 
application for the 2019 CDBG Grant. 

Comm. Salmon made motion to seek bids for mold remediation at Health Department, Jernigan 
seconded; passed unanimously. 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to apply for CDBG grant funding in 2019 for the purpose of 
funding the renovation of Jasper County Health Department, Salmon seconded; passed 
unanimously. 

Tub Grinding Storm Materials Bid Award: 

Mr. Benton noted that staff received 4 bids for tub grinding material located at Jasper County 
C&D Landfill. 85% of the cost will be reimbursed by FEMA and the remainder charged to the 
Landfill budget. 

Comm. Henry made motion to award the bid for Tub Grinding of Storm Materials to Landrum 
Environmental Grinding located in Stockbridge, GA in the amount of $15,496, Luke seconded; 
passed unanimously. 

FY2019 Budget Calendar Review and Approval: 

Mr. Pennamon noted we need to approve the FY2019 Budget Calendar. 

Comm. Henry made motion to accept the FY2019 Budget Calendar as presented, Henry 
seconded; passed unanimously.  

County Attorney Items: 

None 

County Manager Items: 

8



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: February 5, 2018– Regular Meeting  
 

Roads and Bridges: 

Mr. Benton noted the County has received the 2018 LMIG fund in the amount of $546,259 so we 
do need to be thinking about the final road selection. 

Working on identifying a Chip Seal Program for the year. 

Communications: 

Mr. Benton commended Comm. Salmon for initiating staff to upgrade our phone system to 
Voice over IP.  He would like to engage an independent person.  

Comm. Henry made motion to ask County Manager to proceed with the investigation with what 
we need to improve our phone system, Salmon seconded; passed unanimously. 

Legislative Update: 

HB 446 and HB 751, our ACCG representatives support both bills as they pertain to 911. 

HB533, ACCG is negotiating to take the teeth out the bill as it pertains to Broadband. 

Planning: 

Work Session scheduled on February 12th and 26th at 6:00 p.m.  

Qualifying is March 5th – 9th. 

Citizens Comments: 

Rev. Jimmy Horton – Thanks, Recognition of Mr. Pennamon 

Rev. Leroy Grant -  

Executive Session: 

Comm. Henry made motion to go into Executive Session at 8:15 p.m., Jernigan seconded; passed 
unanimously. 

Comm. Salmon made motion to come out of Executive Session at 8:55 p.m., Jernigan seconded; 
passed unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

9



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: February 5, 2018– Regular Meeting  
 

Adjourn: 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to adjourn at 8:56 p.m., Luke seconded; passed unanimously. 

___________________________ 

Carl Pennamon, Chairman 

 

___________________________ 

Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk 

10



Consent Agenda – Item 2 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  March 5, 2018 
 
Subject:  Approval of Check Register 
 
Summary: 
A check register will be generated by the finance department on meeting day for signature and 
approval to process the checks. 
 
Background: 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve processing of check #’s 052207 - 52440 

11



Presentation 
 
Date:   March 5, 2018  
 
Subject: Jasper County’s New Agriculture and Natural Resource Extension Agent  
  

12



Old Business – Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Jasper County Senior Center 
 
Date: 3/5/18 
 
Subject: Jasper County Logo for Vehicles   
 
Summary: We are requesting consideration for the revision of the county logo which will go on 
the new county senior center shuttle bus and could go on all county vehicles with small 
modifications. Our new senior center bus has been delayed and is expected to be ready by 
May 31st so the logo needs to be approved by end of April. 
 
Background: The current county logo is not readable for nearby drivers and it fails to promote 
senior services. The senior center vehicles drive all over the county transporting seniors and this 
is a simple logical way to promote senior services and to educate and recruit new members so 
that we can grow. I recommend that all senior center vehicles get the same updated logo. This 
new logo can be modified to fit each county department if the commissioners so choose. It adds 
color, enlarges the font so that it is readable for nearby drivers, and shows unified focus of 
county government.  
 
I like the design and colors of Clayton County’s but would make “Jasper County Senior Center” 
bolder and have the tag line say “Healthy Aging Never Gets Old” (three lines not four) – this 
would go on the sides; on the back state “Jasper County Senior Services 706-468-7507”. If the 
BOC decides not to fund more than the $325 then I recommend “Jasper County Senior Services 
706-468-7507” be put on the two sides and the rear without a county logo due to limited funds. 
(NOTE: This is being worked up by The Bus Center and are trying to have an updated report for 
you on 3/5.) 

 
 
Cost: The Shuttle Bus order includes $325 for 3 lines of lettering, which is one line per side plus 
one on rear. (Cost of logo as proposed will be forthcoming.) 
 
Recommended Motion: Board Discretion 
 

 

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



Old Business – Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Sheriff Department 
 
Date:    March 5, 2018 
 
Subject:  Sheriff Department Vehicles Lease Financing 
  
 
Summary:  
 
FY 2018 Budget contains approval for three months of lease payments for the lease financing of four 
new Sheriff Department vehicles. 
 
BB&T Governmental Lease Finance Program for new vehicles -  
Interest rate – 3.72% 
Amortization – 60 months 
 
Background: 
 
Approved FY 2018 Budget - $8572 - Three months total of lease payments for four Sheriff Department 
vehicles. 
 
FY 2018 Budget details -  
$160,000 – Purchase of vehicles, safety package, light package, computer package for all four vehicles 
Interest rate – 2.75% 
Amortization – 60 Months 
 
Cost: 
 
Actual lease financing details -  
$158,011.50 – Purchase of vehicles, safety package, light package, computer package for all four 
vehicles. 
Interest rate – 3.72% 
Amortization – 60 Months 
 
$8670.30 - 3 Months Total Cost for FY 2018 
 
$98.30 - Additional total cost for FY 2018 funded by Sheriff Dept. FY 2018 Budget 
 
Recommended Motion(s): 
Authorize Chairman to sign resolution authorizing the execution of a lease purchase agreement with 
ACCG for the following four Dodge Chargers for the Sheriff Department with VIN #’s 
2C3CDXAT0JH189088; 2C3CDXAT2JH189089; 2C3CDXAT9JH189090; 2C3CDXAT0JH189091 
per amortization schedule. 

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



New Business – Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:    March 5, 2018 
 
Subject:  Request by the American Legion, Post 110 for a Proclamation to Name Jasper  
   County a “Purple Heart County”. 
  
 
Summary:  
 
Otis Clark with the American Legion will request a proclamation to name Jasper County a “Purple Heart 
County”.  
 
Mr. Clark will provide information regarding this designation. 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
History and Purpose of the “Purple Heart” Designation will be provided by Otis Clark. 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost: 
 
To be determined 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion(s): 
 
Board Discretion 

29



New Business - Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Planning and Zoning 
 
Date: March 5, 2018 
 
Subject: New Alcohol Application for Bear Creek Marina Restaurant 
 
Summary: New application of Alcohol License 
Bear Creek Marina Restaurant:  Application number 2018-A-009 located at 60 Bear Creek 
Marina Road Mansfield, Ga 30055. Name of applicant: John Herman and Nick Platek. Applying 
for pouring license for distilled spirits, beer, and wine. 
 
Bear Creek Marina Store: Application number 2018-A-010 located at 62 Bear Creek Marina 
Road Mansfield, Ga 30055. Name of applicant: John Herman and Nick Platek. Applying for 
retail sales for beer and wine. 
                     
 
Background:  
John Herman and Nick Platek are new owners of Bear Creek Marina Restaurant and Bear Creek 
Marina Store. They plan on opening the business back up and running it. The place has been shut 
down for a while. 
 
Cost: 
N/A 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Board’s Discretion 

 
 
  

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



New Business – Item 4: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Jasper County Health Department 
 
Date:    March 5, 2018 
 
Subject: Mold Remediation Proposals to Remove Mold in Jasper County Health Department  
 
 
Summary:  
 
Bids for mold remediation at the health department for Phase 1 remediation have been procured.  
 
 Bid 1: ServPro - Macon      $  8,949.92 
 
 Bid 2- Rapid Mold Removal – Zebulon   $  5,275.00  
 
 Bid 3- Bio Restore - Monticello    $15,065.40 
 
 Bid 4- Merritt Pro Carpet Cleaning & Restoration  $  3679.39 
 
 
Background: 
 
Mold inspection was conducted in the health department in January.  At the February meeting of 
the BOC, the inspection report was presented, and the Commission approved requesting bids for 
the phase 1 mold remediation which involves cleaning of the Environmental Health offices and 
bathrooms as well as cleaning the HVAC system.  Phase II would involve patching and repairing 
roof leaks, holes allowing access into attic space, and leaching pipes.   
 
Cost: 
 
 Bid 1 - $  8,949.92 
  
 Bid 2  - $  5,275.00 
 
 Bid 3  - $ 15,065.40 
 
 Bid 4  - $  3679.39 
 
Recommended Motion(s): 
 
The Health Dept. is requesting Commissioners vote on and award a bid to one of the mold 
remediation firms who submitted bids, so that work may begin as soon as possible, and the 
Commissioners approve bidding the patching and repair of the roof at the health department to 
prevent further moisture accumulation.  

48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



New Business – Item 5: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Landfill  
 
Date:   March 5, 2018  
 
Subject: Clean Up Jasper County – April 2018  
  
 
Summary:  
 
Clean Up Jasper County is a project designed to encourage community involvement in cleaning 
up the roadways and landscapes of Jasper County. In support of this project, the Jasper County 
Board of Commissioners will not charge tipping fees to Jasper County residents for the month of 
April. Jasper County businesses and residents and businesses of surrounding counties will 
continue to pay standard tipping fees. 
 
Advanced Disposal Services has once again agreed to support the project by providing the 
following. 

 Large plastic trash bags for residential and community participants 
 Disposable gloves 
 High visibility safety vests 

 
 
Background: 
 
Beginning in April 2016, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners began providing a benefit 
to all residents of Jasper County by waiving tipping fees for the month of April. 
 
Results from the last two years have been very positive. 
Average number of residents tipping at the landfill is approximately 250 per month. 
Average number of residents that have tipped at the landfill for the past two years is over 1200 
for the month of April. 
 
Cost: 
Estimated landfill tipping fee revenue forgone -     $1970 
Estimated additional personnel cost -       $1280 
Estimated additional closure/post closure accounting charge -   $1700 
Total Estimated Additional Cost       $4950 
 
 
Recommended Motion(s): 
Approve Jasper County Landfill to waive tipping fees for the month of April for Jasper County 
residents only. 

66



County Manager Update: 
 
1. Roads and Bridges 

 
 
 
 

2. Legislative: 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Planning: 
 

67




